

Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

Greater London International Airport Authority



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Δ	PROP	OSAL	INSTRI	ICTIONS
м.	FNUF	UJAL	11123170	

		•			
1	Proposal	Sinh	miccion	Intori	mation
1.	FIUUUSAI	Oub	บบออเบบ	ппоп	паноп

- 2. Proposal Inquiries
- 3. Proposal Closing
- 4. Official Proposal Form
- 5. Proposal and Contract Documents
- 6. Withdrawal of Proposals
- 7. Rejection of Irregular Proposals
- 8. Revisions to Proposal Documents
- 9. Interpretation of Proposal Documents
- 10. Award of Contract
- 11. Qualifications of Proponent
- 12. Execution of Legal Documents
- 13. Insurance and Safety
- 14. Taxes & Duty

B. PROPOSAL

- 1. Proposal Documents
- 2. Proponent Declares
- 3. Proponent Agrees
- 4. List of Supporting Documents
- 5. Completing Schedule of Quantities & Prices
- 6. Signatures

C. ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT

- 1. Contract Documents
- 2. Contract Amount
- 3. Period of Work
- 4. Representatives of GLIAA
- 5. Contractors Address
- 6. Addenda
- 7. Invoices
- 8. Sales Taxes
- 9. Performance Bonds



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

D. SCOPE OF WORK

- 1. Specifications
- 2. Location
- 3. Background
- 4. Project Details

E. CONCEPT DRAWINGS

1. Airfield Electrical Layout Expectation



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

A. PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS

1. Proposal Submission Information

- 1.1 The particular attention of Tenderers is drawn to the necessity of legibly pricing each and every item in the Schedule of Quantities and Unit Prices in the Form of Tender and individually and similarly correctly adding up the "amount" columns of the exact total amount of the Tender.
- 1.2 All Tenders shall be valid for acceptance for one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days from the date set for their delivery to the Owner.
- 1.3 The Form of Agreement is included in the Contract Documents at the time of Tendering only for the information of Tenderers and shall not be completed at the time of tendering.
- 1.4 On the written acceptance by the Owner of a Tender, that Tender becomes the Contract and the Tenderer who has submitted it becomes the Contractor. The Contractor will be required to enter into a formal agreement with the Owner following receipt of a written letter of acceptance from the Owner.
- 1.5 The Owner will not defray any expenses whatsoever incurred by Tenderers in the preparation and submission of their tenders.
- 1.6 Proposals to be considered must be made on this form (without any alteration or addition, except where specified) and enclosed in a sealed envelope marked with Project "Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting Lightning Damage", and must be addressed to:

Laura Shepherd Director, Operations Greater London International Airport Authority 10 Seabrook Way London, ON N5V 3B6

2. Proposal Inquiries

- 2.1 If there are to be any changes in the work, tenderers will be informed, prior to the close of the period allowed for receiving tenders, by means of an addendum, a written communication issued by the Owner. All addenda shall become a part of the contract documents, and receipt of addenda shall be acknowledged by the tenderer in the tender.
- Any ambiguities, inconsistencies, or uncertainties in the contract documents which may become apparent to tenderers when tendering shall be advised in writing to the Consultant and the Owner. The Consultant will advise all tenderers simultaneously of any decisions on such matters as necessary by means of addenda (which will be serially numbered) and all addenda issued shall be incorporated in the tender.
- 2.3 Inquiries/Questions should be directed to Laura Shepherd, Director, Operations.

Laura Shepherd
Director, Operations
T: 519-452-4013
Ishepherd@flylondon.ca



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

- A site review and all questions in relation to the bid documents, whether technical or contract, will be held March 18th, 2024, at 10:00am local time, meeting in the Executive Boardroom at the London International Airport for all prospective bidders. Attendance at the Proposal Briefing is mandatory.
- 2.5 The submission of a proposal document shall be considered prima facie evidence that the proponent has made an investigation as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the services and the requirements of the documents that form the proposal package.

3. Proposal Closing

3.1 Proposals must be received at the office stipulated above on or before **3:00pm Local Time.**, **April 15**th, **2024**. Proposals received after this time will not be considered regardless of the reason for being late.

4. Official Proposal Form

- 4.1 All proposals must be submitted on the proposal forms provided and are to be properly executed, in a single copy and submitted as instructed herein.
- 4.2 Proposals shall be placed in sealed envelopes, clearly indicating their contents, and addressed to the office indicated herein.
- 4.3 Any paper submission shall be accompanied by an electronic copy of the proposal in PDF format.

5. Proposal and Contract Documents

- 5.1 All papers bound with or attached to the proposal forms are necessary parts thereof and must not be detached or altered.
- All plans, specifications, and other documents, designated in the proposal form, will be considered a part of the proposal whether attached or not, and all such documents, including the proposal form when executed and accepted, will constitute part of the contract.

6. Withdrawal of Proposals

No proposal can be withdrawn after it is filed unless the proponent makes the request in writing to the office stipulated above, and such request is received prior to the proposal closing. A written notice of withdrawal submitted by the proponent must be signed by the authorized signatory of the proponent.

7. Rejection of Irregular Proposals

7.1 All spaces in the proposal must be completed and the person or persons executing the proposal on behalf of the proponent must initial all handwritten or typewritten alterations to the parts so completed. The initials must be adjacent to the alteration or correction. Any other alteration, additions not called for, conditions, limitation, unauthorized alternate proposals, or other regularities of any kind on the preprinted part of the proposal may render it subject to disqualification.



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

8. Revisions to Proposal Documents

- Proponents are advised that no request for suggested amendments to the proposal documents, i.e.: extension of the scheduled closing date, the completion date, and the like, can be entertained unless the request is received prior to the end of the question period.
- 8.1 Where a formal proposal has been received, a revision thereto by uploading a revised bid to the London International Airport Website, is acceptable, provided that:
 - 8.1.1 It is received on, or before, the time set for closing proposals.
 - 8.1.2 It sets forth complete and precise details of all changes.

9. Interpretation of Proposal Documents

- 9.1 Oral interpretation of the meaning or intent of the proposal documents, or correction of any apparent ambiguity, inconsistency, or error, shall not be binding. Written interpretation shall be provided by the Contracting Authority to all proponents in the form of an addendum to the proposal documents by delivery prior to the proposal closing date.
- 9.2 Only written interpretation/addenda shall be binding, and proponents are warned that no other source is authorized to interpret the proposal documents.

10. Award of Contract

- An award of contract will not be made until the necessary investigation of the qualifications of the proponents has been made and it has been determined that all requirements have been met.
- 10.2 GLIAA reserves the right to award any resulting Contract based upon that which is believed to represent best value to GLIAA.
- Neither the lowest price nor any proposal shall necessarily be accepted. In making the selection GLIAA will also consider the degree and quality of product, relevant experience offered by the supplier, references, etc., in addition to proposed price. Price and content of proposals will not be released to other parties after the award of the contract.
- 10.4 There will be no payments made to suppliers for proposal preparation. This work is at the expense of the proponent.
- 10.5 In the case of error in the extension of prices, the unit price shall govern. The total proposal price shall be the total resulting from the correct mathematical addition of individual lump sum prices and unit price extensions.
- 10.6 The proponent shall state in the proposal form the time within which the bidder expects to be able to complete the Work based on production. Proponents should be aware that timelines have been provided in the tender documents (specifications and drawings) and the milestone dates shown are expected to be met. Proposal schedules will be a major consideration when awarding the contract.

11. Qualifications of Proponent

11.1 The proponent must show that s/he is capable of providing the type of products contemplated and shall submit with the proposal all attachments thereto, completing and/or executing same when required.



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

12. Execution of Legal Documents

12.1 Contract documents must be signed by the proponent's officers who are authorized to enter into legal contracts. When the contract is signed under embossed company seal it is not mandatory to have the signature(s) of a witness. When a contract is not signed under an embossed company seal it is mandatory that each signature be witnessed.

13. Insurance and Safety

On award of contract, the successful proponent shall furnish evidence of coverage, as follows and continue to provide evidence of coverage during the course of the contract:

General Liability Insurance - \$12,000,000.00 Automobile Insurance - \$5,000,000.00 Workers Compensation Company Health and Safety Policy

13.2 The proponent shall submit certification from the proponent's insurance company indicating that the required insurance shall be available upon contract award.

14. Taxes and Duty

14.1 All taxes and duties, except for Harmonized Sales Tax (HST). Are to be included in the prices quoted herein.

END OF SECTION



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

B. PROPOSAL

3.5

of Proposal Closing.

1. Proposal Documents

PR	20	PΩ	SΔ	ΙГ	\mathbf{c}	111	MEN	NTS

		PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS	
	TO:	Greater London International Airport Authority 10 Seabrook Way London, ON N5V 3B6	
	FOR:	Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage	
	FROM:		
	2. Proponent D	eclares	
3.1	That this proposal	was made without collusion or fraud.	
3.1	That the proposed	work was carefully examined.	
3.1	That the Proponen	t was familiar with local conditions.	
3.1	That Contract Doc	uments and Addenda Notoinclusive were carefully examined.	
3.1	That all the above	were taken into consideration in preparation of this Proposal.	
	3. Proponent A	grees	
3.1	agrees to supply the the equipment, and	o a contract for the supply and/or installation of equipment the Proponent be equipment and to do all work necessary to construct, outfit, test, and delived train GLIAA Staff as to its proper operations and maintenance as described in for the prices stated herein.	r
3.2	make alternations a high standard co responsible manne	o a contract to design and/or build a facility, install a service, utility, or road, or to an existing facility, service, utility or road, the Proponent agrees to maintain insistent with existing elements and to implement in an environmentally er. All design elements, planning and engineering must be fully coordinated dherence to good design principles.	
3.3	The Proponent will security requireme	work within regular airport operations and comply with the airport safety and nts.	
3.4		sible, the total proposed price shall be the sum of the products of the estimated quantities herein.	

That this Proposal is valid for acceptance for one hundred and twenty (120) days from the time



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

- 3.6 That all expenses incurred by a Proponent in the preparation of their Proposal, and any subsequent presentations or demonstrations, are entirely the responsibility of the Proponent.

 The Proposal should indicate a primary contact person in the Proponent's organization and also a person authorized to make commitments on behalf of the Proponent.
- 3.7 To execute in single copy the Agreement and forward it together with the applicable insurance documents to GLIAA within 14 days of written notice of award.
- 3.8 Any products supplied by the successful Proponent(s) (if any) shall be supplied in such a manner as to preserve any and all manufacturer's warranties, for the benefit of GLIAA.
- 3.9 In the event that a Proponent is supplying a product that is all or partially sourced from other parties, the Proponent guaranties that it is an authorized reseller of the product.
- 3.10 That GLIAA shall not be liable for, and Proponents shall indemnify GLIAA with respect to any dumping duties, which may be levied by Canada Customs and Revenue Agency, under provisions of the Anti-Dumping Act.
- 3.11 That the Proposal is not made in connection with any other Proponent submitting a Proposal for the same product and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.
- 3.12 That the products and or services offered comply in all respects with existing Provincial and Federal laws, and failure to comply with this condition shall be considered a breach of contract.
- 3.13 To pay all royalties and patent license fees required for the performance of the contract, and at the Proponent's own expense, defend all suits and proceedings against, and indemnify GLIAA against any award of damages, demands, losses, charges or costs made against GLIAA if such suits or proceedings are based on any claim that any of the products or services supplied by the successful Proponent(s), constitutes an infringement of a patent by the successful Proponent(s). Further, if any of the products or services supplied results in an infringement of patent and its use is enjoined, the successful Proponent(s) shall, at the Proponent's own expense, procure for the GLIAA, the right to continue using the product, replace or modify the product so it becomes non-infringing and meets the requirements of GLIAA for loss of use of the product.
- 3.14 The copyright of any drawings plans and/or specifications for design/ build projects are assigned to and licenced in favour of His Majesty the King in Right of Canada, represented by the Minister of Transport (Landlord). This includes any new construction, alteration of existing facilities or installation of any utility, service, or road. The Architect or Engineer shall not hold GLIAA nor the Landlord responsible for any costs or expenses incurred or to be incurred in connection with the preparation of such drawings, plans and specifications or their subsequent use by the Landlord and that the Landlord is entitled to use such drawings, plans and specifications for any purpose or purposes related to the Project whatsoever at any time without any further consent and without any further payment.
- 3.15 That no commitment shall exist under this Request for Proposals until such time as the successful Proponent(s) receives official written confirmation from GLIAA accompanied by a Purchase Order.



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

3.16	That any agreement resulting from this RFP shall be between GLIAA and the successful Proponent(s). The agreement between the parties shall ensure to the benefit of and be binding upon them and their successors, executors, and administrators.				
3.17	That all costs are to be quoted in Canac	lian Currency and will be paid in Canadian Currency.			
	4. List Of Supporting Documents	s (Provided Separately):			
4.1	Contract Drawings				
4.2	Contract Specifications				
4.3	Bid Form				
	5. Completing Schedule of Quan	tities and Prices			
5.1	The Proponent shall provide a detailed and attach to the proposal.	ist of all items included in the bid on a separate sheet			
5.2	All prices shall include delivery and train	ning as applicable.			
	6. Signatures				
DATE	ED THISDAY OF	, 2024.			
Name	e of Firm				
Signat	ature of Signing Officer				
Witnes	ess	Name and Title (Printed)			
Witnes	255	Signature of Signing Officer			
		Name and Title (Printed)			

Company Address



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

Telephone No.		
FAX No.		
*NOTE:	Proposals submitted by or on behalf of any Corporation must be signed and sealed in the name of such Corporation by a duly authorized officer or agent.	

END OF SECTION



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

C. ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT

These Articles of Agreement made in duplicate this	day of	, 2024.

BETWEEN

Greater London International Airport Authority

10 Seabrook Way London, ON N5V 3B6

hereafter referred to as "GLIAA"

and

hereafter referred to as the "Contractor"

WITNESS that in consideration for the mutual promises and obligations contained in the Contract, GLIAA and the Contractor covenant and agree as follows:

1. Contract Documents

- 1.1 The Contractor hereby undertakes to perform, construct, and complete the Work, at the place and in the manner set out in the plans and specifications, in accordance with these Contract Documents.
- 1.2 In the contract:
 - 1.2.1 "Fixed Price Arrangement" means that part of the Contract that prescribes a lump sum as payment for performance of the Work to which it relates; and
 - 1.2.2 "Unit Price Arrangement" means that part of the Contract that prescribes the product of a price multiplied by a number of units of measurement of a class of labour, plant, or material as payment for performance of the Work to which it relates.
- 1.3 Any of the provisions of the Contract that are expressly stipulated to be applicable only to a Unit Price Arrangement are not applicable to any part of the Work to which a Fixed Price Arrangement is applicable.
- 1.4 Any of the provisions of the Contract that are expressly stipulated to be applicable only to a Fixed Price Arrangement are not applicable to any part of the Work to which a Unit Price Arrangement is applicable.



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

2. Contract Amount

2.1 Subject to any increase, decrease, deduction, reduction or set-off that may be made under the Contract, GLIAA shall pay the Contractor at the times and in the manner that is set out or referred to in the Terms of Payment the sums as follows:

Total Bid \$______, HST extra

in consideration for the performance of the Work or the part thereof.

2.2 The Contractor agrees that the prices proposed above include and cover customs duties, sales tax, royalties, handling, transportation, overhead, profit, and all other charges, but DO NOT include the applicable HST.

3. Period Of Work

 The Contractor hereby undertakes to complete the Work (final completion) by October 15th, 2024.

4. Representatives Of GLIAA

4.1 For the purposes of this Contract the <u>Site Authority/Representative</u> is:

Laura Shepherd
Director, Operations
Greater London International Airport Authority
10 Seabrook Way
London, ON
N5V 3B6
TEL: (519) 452-4013

4.2 For the purposes of this Contract the *Contracting Authority* is:

Scott McFadzean President & CEO Greater London International Airport Authority 10 Seabrook Way London, ON N5V 3B6 TEL: (519) 452-4038



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

5. Contractor's Address

Contra	actor's Name, Addr	ess, Phone/Fax Number:		
	TEL: ()		
	FAX: ()		
Signat	ture of Authorized I	Representative		s of Person Signing t or Type)
alterat	ion be made to the	respect to the Proposal Form text, or should any condition lared invalid and rejected by 0	be added on or submitted v	
	6. Addenda			
5.1		grees that the following adder dered in its proposal.	nda issued by GLIAA have b	peen received and
Adde	ndum No.		Da	ate
Date:		Authorized Signatu	ro.	



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

7. Invoices

- 7.1 Invoices are to include and cover all labour, material, overhead, profit and all other charges and must be in accordance with the Contract proposal amounts and related job estimate.
- 7.2 Itemized invoices, quoting the contract number and HST registration number, are to be submitted directly to:

Greater London International Airport Authority Accounts Payable 10 Seabrook Way London, ON N5V 3B6

8. Sales Tax

- 8.1 HST will be payable on the purchase or lease of goods and real property and on the provision of services supplied in Canada or imported, except for those specifically declared to be tax-free or tax-exempt.
- 8.2 HST is excluded from the price(s) rates quoted herein. Any amount to be levied against GLIAA in respect of the HST is to be shown separately on all invoices for goods or services supplied. The Contractor agrees to include the Contractor's HST Registration Number on all invoices and to remit to Revenue Canada any HST paid or due.

9. Performance Bonds

- 9.1 Contractor shall purchase, provide and maintain,
 - (a) performance bonds being no less than fifty percent (50%) of the contract amount, or an alternative arrangement acceptable to the Minister, and
 - (b) labour and material payment bonds being no less than fifty percent (50%) of the contract amount, or an alternative arrangement acceptable to the Minister.

All such bonds, or alternatives, shall be in a form acceptable to His Majesty the King in Right of Canada (Transport Canada). Evidence of the existence of such bonds shall be provided to the Airport by the Contractor. The His Majesty the King in Right of Canada (Transport Canada) shall be named as an obligee pursuant to such bonds, or such bonds shall, with the consent of the bonding company, be validly assigned to the Transport Canada.



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GLIAA AND THE CONTRACTOR

SIGNATURE PAGE

This Contract has been executed on behalf of the Contractor and on behalf of the Greater London International Airport Authority by their duly authorized officers.

	COMPANY NAME
Printed Name	Signature
Position and/or Title	<u></u>
Witness	Date
signature(s) witnessed. When these c	ned under embossed Company Seal it is not mandatory to have documents are not signed under embossed Company Seal it is essed, and these proposal documents be submitted with a certified erson or persons in question.
Greater Lo	ndon International Airport Authority
Scott McFadzean President & CEO	Laura Shepherd Director, Operations
Witness	 Date

END OF SECTION



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

SCOPE OF WORK



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

d. SCOPE OF WORK

1. Specifications

1.1 The scope of work has been developed based on all available information and recommendations by various consultants.

The objectives are to replace and install new airfield lighting and FEC components, returning the airport to servable and operatable level. These services will be broken down into the following tasks.

- a. Preliminary Works including full survey, geotechnical visual inspection, and confirmation of design scope.
- b. Detailed Design
- c. Tendering Services and Award Recommendation
- d. Project Management Services During Construction
- e. Post Construction Services

2. Location

Latitude: 43° 2'4.91"N Longitude: 81° 9'20.29"W

3. Background

On July 14th, 2023, The London International Airport airfield was hit with multiple lightning strikes knocking out over 70% of our airfield's lighting. Damage made Taxiway Bravo, Echo, North Golf, Alpha, all the PAPi's and ODALS, and components of the Field Electrical Centre (FEC).

4. Project Details (See attached drawing as reference)

- a. Primary cable and isolating transformer replacement for the following 9 circuits; Taxi G(S)/F/H/D, Taxi G(N), Taxi B/C/E, Taxi A, 27 ODALS, 27 PAPIs, 09 ODALS, 09 PAPIs, 33 PAPIs, and 09-27.
- b. Conduit installation for the following 2 circuits; 09 ODALS, 09 PAPIs (since the existing cabling is direct buried).
- c. Replacement of Runway 09-27 edge lights with new medium intensity LED lights including new isolating transformers.
- d. Installation of new conduit for the following 7 circuits; Taxi G(S)/F/H/D, Taxi G(N), Taxi B/C/E, Taxi A, 27 ODALS, 27 PAPIs, 33 PAPIs.
 - i. This assumes that all conduit, except for under pavement crossings and conduit into the FEC, would be replaced and that existing pull pits would be re-used.
- e. Replacement of 09 ODALS and 27 ODALS synchronization direct buried TECK cable.
- f. Replacement of 09 ODALS and 27 ODALS power converter boxes and flash head light fixtures.
- g. Replacement of 09 PAPI, 27 PAPI and 33 PAPI bulbs.
- h. Replacement of 15 SSALR RAILs / Flashing Light isolating transformers, power converter units and flash head fixtures.
- i. Complete constant current regulator (CCR) HI-BOY, 20KW, 2400V, 6.6 AMP thyristor transformer installed in the field electrical centre (FEC).

NOTE: All existing components are property of the Airport Authority.

END OF SECTION



Replace and Repair Airfield Lighting – Lightning Damage

E. DRAWING

